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1. Name
' Koo 2D
historic Sonoma Grammar School
. APR (7 1380
and/or common Sonoma Community Center
OFP

2. Location
' 276 E. Napa St.

street & number

- NOt for publication

city, town Sonoma ____ vicinity of congressional district 1st CA

state California code 06 county Sonoma code 097
3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

___district —__ public X occupied ____agriculture —__ museum

X _ building(s) _X_ private —___unoccupied —__ commercial — park
____structure ___both ____work in progress -X_educational - private residence
—_site Public Acquisition Accessible X entertainment _X_ religious

_—_ object ___ in process . yes: restricted _X_ government — scientific

__ being considered yes: unrestricted

—_no

____industrial
— military

— transportation
X other: Social Serv.

4. Owner of Pro!erty

name

The Sorioma Community Center, Inc., 4 Non-Profit Corporation

street & number 276 E. Napa St,

city, town Solloma

—_ vicinity of state CA 95,476

5. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Sonoma County Recorder's Office
street & number 2555 Mendocino Ave.,, P.0. Box 6124
city, town Santa Rossa state CA 95406
6. Representation in Existing Surveys

‘Sonoma Valley Historical . ‘
titte Resources Survey has this property been determined. elegible? ___yes X no
date Completed May, 1979 ___federal ___state _;:ounty X _local
depository for survey records Sonoma City Hall, 1 The Plaza .
city, town Sonoma state CA 95476 @)



7. Description

Condition Cheok eno Cheok ono

— excelient —— deteriorated ____ unaltered _x original site
X __good - S— ][] ) X _ altered ——_moved  date
— falr —— unexpoeed

Describo the preeent and eriginal (if known) physical appearance

The SonomgGrammar School is a free-standing, -@19831031 Bevival, two-
story building situasted on the front half of a two-acre parcel, The
front elevation of the structure is about 50! from a main thoroughfare,
The building 1s U-shaped, symmetrical, and in very good condition.

The front (south) elevation is 177' long and divided into 5 different
vertical elements. The center element (30' wide x 36') is 8 Cluieie.Q

portico with pediment, cornice, and four free-standing terra codsa,
Ionic columns 21' high and 2'6™ in dismeter at the base., These columns
freme an entry that is 12' wide, 22' high with double doors, side-lites
and a large top-lite composed of 28 psnes. The entire entry is framed
in American Osk. '

At either end of the front elevation, two secondary entry points 34! wide
and 33' high project out about 6' from the face of the building. These .
entry points have massive, rusticated, red brick gilesvecs. and are topped
by Neo-€lassical pascpsts . The recessed alcove that protects the
double-door is of light creem brick veneer with gecometrical designs in
the brick work. ' '

Between the main entryway asnd the secondary entry points are two some-
what recessed areas approximately 37' wide and 33' high.

Windows on the front facade are grouped in 6 _b«ﬁs of five, and are
double-hung, sash windows with fluted wood trim. TFour bays = are at
the main floor level, a2nd two at the basement level,

The brick exterior of the front elevation is leid in a common bond pat-
tern with a syth every sixth row and s soldler course at the bottom,
which rests upon a massive concrete base some L' high, A Walt Cevuesc «
cream-colored pressed brick runs the length of the facade. It is Jop-
ped by a 2' wide cornice with dentPlls and ogea molding .eabove and be-
low. The cornice also runs the length of the front elevation, ag does
a 3' high brick parapet with a brick cap.

The east and west elevations are both 120' long and 33! high, and con-
tinue the b Gursz, cornice, Pavepet , 8nd red brick veneer of the front
elevation. On the west elevation, L recessed windows provide s
decorative lighting for the suditorium that occupies the west wing.
Bach window has 3 vertical lites in the bottom sash, and an8 lite

star pattern in the top sash. An elsborste geometrical pattern of
brick decorates the wall under each window. Beneath three of these

at the ground level, are pairs of double-hung wood frame sash,
Double-doors open out under the fourth design.

The east elevation does not have the decorative bay windows or geo-
metrical brick work. Its windows are clustered in 6 groups of 5
windows each. (Continued on continustion sheets)
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The rear elevation 1s 177' long, 33' high and U-shaped. Wings on either

end of the building enclose a plain concrete courtyard. The frieze,

cornice, and dentfils continue for about 2/3 of the length of each wing

of the U, and then are replaced by s red brick frieze and corbelled cor-

nice, The parapet and massive concrets base continue for the entire

length of the rear elevation. Thirty-seven wood frame, double-hung
windows look onto the courtyard.

Notable architectural features of the interior include:

l. A 9' wide, 16' long concrete stairwey with simple oak handrails,

leading from the main entry to the main floor;
2. Massive =~ _ . ogk stalrcases with : . newel posts,
square valestevs,, and shaped : hend rails at either end of
the main hall;
Coved, 12' high, lath and plaster ceilings;
Lath and plaster walls with picture molding and walnscoting trim
of verticsel grain Douglas Fir:
Bullt-in corner cabinets of Dougles Fir with glass doors;
Vertical interior windows .. o to light the main
hallways upstairs and down;
+ Numerous white globe lights;
. Panel doors of Douglas Fir with obscure glass transoms and

brass fittings, with molding 6™ wide of Douglas Fir;

9. 12" wide decorative base board of Douglas Fir,

o~ ool Fw

A particularly outstsnding feature of the interior is the theater-
auditorium that occupies the west wing of the building. The sudit-
orium's main floor is 30' wide and 60! long with a 24' high coved
ceiling; it comfortably seats 200 people. The balcony is 30' x 30!
with fixed wooden seats for another 100 people. The elevated stage
has an ornamental arch of stucco water lilies culminating in 2 plas-
ter cherubs. The arch is 24' wide and 16! high., Acoustics in the
auditorium are excellent,

In 1924, the rear wings of the original building were enclosed in
larger wings. Both the interior and exterior details and architec-
tural features were duplicated exactly, and the additions were en~
tird,compatible with the original structure. In all, 2800 sq., ft.
were added both upstairs and down.
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Except for some weathering, the rusting of sheet metal used to cover the
cornice, and the painting of the oak trim on the outside of the entryways, the exterior
of the building retains its integrity to its 1916 and 1924 appearance.. Some
remodeling has occured on the interior, including substantial rewiring, the replace-
ment of some globes with florescent lights, and minor alterations in several
rooms. These alterations are routine in nature and do not materially detract
from the integrity of the building.

The building is situated in a neat, quiét residential area on a main
thoroughfare, and is less than 2 blocks from the historic Sonoma Plaza, listed
on the National Register of Historic pPlaces in 1975.



8. Significance

Poriod Areas of Significanoe—Cheok and Justify below

—— prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ___ landscape architecture — religion

——1400-1499 ___ archeoclogy-historic —— conservation — law —— 8clence

—— 1500-1699 ___ agriculture —— economics — literature : — sculpture
— 1600-1699 . .x._ architecture -X_ education ——— military — soclal/
——1700-1789° ___art. — ongineering — music humanitarian
—— 18001899 '_commerce —. expioration/settiement ___ philosophy —— theater

£ 1900~ —— communications —— Industry . — politica/government ___ tranaportation

—— Invention —— other (epecity)
Specific dates 1916, Addit., 192, pulider/Architect A. C. Lutgens

Statement of Significance (in cne paragraph)

The Sonoma Grammar School possesses great architectural, historical, and
tdocations gignificance for this area because of its structural uniqueness,
its suthenticity, 1ts ease of accessiblility, and its role in the develop-
ment of the community. Moreover, in its present role as The Sonoma Com-
munity Center, it continues to be an important cultural, educationai,

and soclal institution, with a rapidly expanding program of cormunity
services,

Architecturally, The Sonoma Grammar School is significant because it 1is
a splendidly preserved, large-scale example of a pre-World War I neo-
Qlassical-Revival school building of & kind increasingly rare in Calif-
ornia. It is the only building of its kind in Sonoma, the largest
brick structure in town and #: kz(? " the last of its kind that will
ever be built in this area.

Historically, it is significant because it ' Siquels | the impor-
tance placed on education by this small, rursl community. When it was
constructed, it was the grandest building in Sonoma, and its construc-
tion must have gtrained the resources of the people. For over 30 years,
until building code changes forced the building's abandonment as o
school, the graede school children of Sonoma learned in this building
the fundamentals of education, democracy, and Americanism. The school
was, in fact, a miniature "melting pot"™, where the children of parents
who often could not even spesak English learned to work and play toget=-
her and respsct one another's differences.

Although it is no longer operated as an educational facility, the building
.continues to play an important part in the recreational, cultural, and mteilectual
life of the Sonoma Valley as thé home of the Sonoma Community Center.



9. Major Bibliographical References

Miss Jerry Casson, Nov., 1979; Mr, Allen Bean, Nov., 1979;
Sonoma Valley Historical Resources Survey; original blueprints,
dated 1916; Vic Conforti, Architect; Marian Brackenridge, Nov., 1979;

Richard W. Roth, Dec. 1979.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property _< 8% Acre (37,260 sq.ft.)
Quadrangie name _SONOM Quadrangle scale _{

UMT References
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Verbal boundary description and justification That part of the original parcel (Lot 39 on
the Official Plat Map of the City of Sonoma) occupied by the building and
extending out from the East, West, and North elevations 15 Feet, and ex-
tending from the South (front) elevation to- the sidewalk that _runs parallel

Lict allstatos and counties for propeies ovlappng s ate or county ound‘ries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nametitie LARRY G. KINCAID, Manager

organization _ SONOMA COMMUNITY CENTER date March 17, 1980
street & number 216 E. Napa St. ,. telephone (7Q7) 938-4626
city or town Sonoma " state CA 95476

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

- nationai ____state 2 tocal

As the designated State Historic Preservation Ofticer for theNational Historié Presetvation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89~
665), | hereby nominate.this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that It has been evaluatet
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature ‘ ”4::/\/ : N %«1 . PR

title : : I

~DA 6ne aam
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The archltect of the Sonoma Grammar School was A.C. Lutgens,
& modestly successful San Franclsco bullder and designer
who had grown up iIn the Sonoma Valley and attended the old
gremmar school hls bullding eventually replaced. Among Mr.
Lutgens other bulldlngs, the most famous 1s the widely
known Sonoma City Hall, which was constructed in 1905, and
which has already gained inclusion in the National

Register.

)
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JY #7

Sonoma Grammar School
Sonoma, Sonoma Caounty California

The map below 1s a traclng of the page of

the Officlal Map of The City of Sonoma showing
the parcel occupled by the Sonoma Grammar School
(Sopma Community Cenmter). The entire parcel is
outlined in double black lines; the portion of
the total parcel being considered for recognition
is shaded 1in red.

«

Eplscopal Church

Private
Resldences Private

.. Resldences
Lot #39

| -

The Sonoma
Grammar
School

' r—i_-_r——l___ North

FINT im0

—

E. Napa st.

3rd.
st.
East ) Q‘%Q’




7. Description

Condition Cheok eno Cheok ono

— oxcelient —— deteriorated ____ unaltered _x original site
X __good - S— ][] ) X _ altered ——_moved  date
— fair —— unexpoeed

Describo the preeent and eriginal (if known) physical appearance

The SonomgGrammar School is a free-standing, -@19831031 Bevival, two-
story building situasted on the front half of a two-acre parcel, The
front elevation of the structure is about 50! from a main thoroughfare,
The building 1s U-shaped, symmetrical, and in very good condition.

The front (south) elevation is 177' long and divided into 5 different
vertical elements. The center element (30' wide x 36') is 8 Cluieie.Q

portico with pediment, cornice, and four free-standing terra codsa,
Ionic columns 21' high and 2'6™ in dismeter at the base, These columns
freme an entry that is 12' wide, 22' high with double doors, side-lites
and a large top-lite composed of 28 psnes. The entire entry is framed
in American Osk. '

At either end of the front elevation, two secondary entry points 34! wide
and 33' high project out about 6' from the face of the building. These .
entry points have massive, rusticated, red brick gilesvecs. and are topped
by Neo-€lassical pascpsts . The recessed alcove that protects the
double-door is of light creem brick veneer with gecometrical designs in
the brick work. ' '

Between the main entryway asnd the secondary entry points are two some-
what recessed areas approximately 37' wide and 33' high.

Windows on the front facade are grouped in 6 _b«ﬁs of five, and are
double-hung, sash windows with fluted wood trim. TFour bays = are at
the main floor level, a2nd two at the basement level,

The brick exterior of the front elevation is leid in a common bond pat-
tern with a syth every sixth row and s soldler course at the bottom,
which rests upon a massive concrete base some L' high, A Walt Ceuesc «
cream-colored pressed brick runs the length of the facade. It 1s Jop-
ped by a 2' wide cornice with dentPlls and ogea molding .eabove and be-
low. The cornice also runs the length of the front elevation, ag does
a 3' high brick parapet with a brick cap.

The east and west elevations are both 120' long and 33! high, and con-
tinue the b Gursz, cornice, Pavepet , 8nd red brick veneer of the front
elevation. On the west elevation, L recessed windows provide s
decorative lighting for the suditorium that occupies the west wing.
Bach window has 3 vertical lites in the bottom sash, and an8 lite

star pattern in the top sash. An elsborste geometrical pattern of
brick decorates the wall under each window. Beneath three of these

at the ground level, are pairs of double-hung wood frame sash,
Double-doors open out under the fourth design.

The east elevation does not have the decorative bay windows or geo-
metrical brick work. Its windows are clustered in 6 groups of 5
windows each. (Continued on continustion sheets)
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The rear elevation 1s 177' long, 33' high and U-shaped. Wings on either

end of the building enclose a plain concrete courtyard. The frieze,

cornice, and dentfils continue for about 2/3 of the length of each wing

of the U, and then are replaced by s red brick frieze and corbelled cor-

nice. The parapet and massive concrets base continue for the entire

length of the rear elevation. Thirty-seven wood frame, double-hung
windows look onto the courtyard.

Notable architectural features of the interior include:

l. A 9' wide, 16' long concrete stairway with simple oak handrails,

leading from the main entry to the main floor;
2. Massive =~ _ . ogk stalrcases with : . newel posts,
square valestevs,, and shaped : hend rails at either end of
the main hall;
Coved, 12' high, lath and plaster ceilings;
Lath and plaster walls with picture molding and walnscoting trim
of verticsel grain Douglas Fir:
Bullt-in corner cabinets of Dougles Fir with glass doors;
Vertical interior windows .. o to light the main
hallways upstairs and down;
+ Numerous white globe lights;
. Panel doors of Douglas Fir with obscure glass transoms and

brass fittings, with molding 6™ wide of Douglas Fir;

9. 12" wide decorative base board of Douglas Fir,

o~ ool Fw

A particularly outstsnding feature of the interior is the theater-
auditorium that occupies the west wing of the building. The sudit-
orium's main floor is 30' wide and 60! long with a 24' high coved
ceiling; it comfortably seats 200 people. The balcony is 30' x 30!
with fixed wooden seats for another 100 people. The elevated stage
has an ornamental arch of stucco water lilies culminating in 2 plas-
ter cherubs. The arch is 24' wide and 16! high., Acoustics in the
auditorium are excellent,

In 1924, the rear wings of the original building were enclosed in
larger wings. Both the interior and exterior details and architec-
tural features were duplicated exactly, and the additions were en~
tird,compatible with the original structure. In all, 2800 sq., ft.
were added both upstairs and down.
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Except for some weathering, the rusting of sheet metal used to cover the
cornice, and the painting of the oak trim on the outside of the entryways, the exterior
of the building retains its integrity to its 1916 and 1924 appearance.. Some
remodeling has occured on the interior, including substantial rewiring, the replace-
ment of some globes with florescent lights, and minor alterations in several
rooms. These alterations are routine in nature and do not materially detract
from the integrity of the building.

The building is situated in a neat, quiét residential area on a main
thoroughfare, and is less than 2 blocks from the historic Sonoma Plaza, listed
on the National Register of Historic pPlaces in 1975.



8. Significance

Poriod Areas of Significanoe—Cheok and Justify below

—— prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ___ landscape architecture — religion

——1400-1499 ___ archeoclogy-historic —— conservation — law —— 8clence

—— 1500-1699 ___ agriculture —— economics — literature : — sculpture
— 1600-1699 . .x._ architecture -X_ education ——— military — soclal/
——1700-1789° ___art. — ongineering — music humanitarian
—— 18001899 '_commerce —. expioration/settiement ___ philosophy —— theater

£ 1900~ —— communications —— Industry . — politica/government ___ tranaportation

—— Invention —— other (epecity)
Specific dates 1916, Addit., 192, pulider/Architect A. C. Lutgens

Statement of Significance (in cne paragraph)

The Sonoma Grammar School possesses great architectural, historical, and
tdocations gignificance for this area because of its structural uniqueness,
its suthenticity, 1ts ease of accessiblility, and its role in the develop-
ment of the community. Moreover, in its present role as The Sonoma Com-
munity Center, it continues to be an important cultural, educationai,

and soclal institution, with a rapidly expanding program of cormunity
services,

Architecturally, The Sonoma Grammar School is significant because it is
a splendidly preserved, large-scale example of a pre-World War I neo-
Qlassical-Revival school building of & kind increasingly rare in Calif-
ornia. It is the only building of its kind in Sonoma, the largest
brick structure in town and #: kz(? " the last of its kind that will
ever be built in this area.

Historically, it is significant because it ' Siquels | the impor-
tance placed on education by this small, rursl community. When it was
constructed, it was the grandest building in Sonoma, and its construc-
tion must have gtrained the resources of the people. For over 30 years,
until building code changes forced the building's abandonment as o
school, the graede school children of Sonoma learned in this building
the fundamentals of education, democracy, and Americanism. The school
was, in fact, a miniature "melting pot"™, where the children of parents
who often could not even spesak English learned to work and play toget=-
her and respsct one another's differences.

Although it is no longer operated as an educational facility, the building
.continues to play an important part in the recreational, cultural, and mteilectual
life of the Sonoma Valley as thé home of the Sonoma Community Center.



9. Major Bibliographical References

Miss Jerry Casson, Nov., 1979; Mr., Allen Bean, Nov., 1979;
Sonoma Valley Historlcal Resources Survey; original blueprints,
dated 1916; Vie Conforti, Architect; Marian Brackenridge, Nov., 1979;

Richard W. Roth, Dec. 1979.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property - @& Acre (37,260 sq.ft.)
Quadrangle name _SON0OMg

Quadrangle scale 1224 OO?

UMT References . o
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Verbal boundary description and justification That part of the original parcel, (Lot 39 on
the Official Plat Map of the City of Sonomas) occupied by the building and
extending out from the East, West, and Nerth elevations 15 feet, and ex-

| - from the South (front) elevation to- the sidewalk that rung parallel

3 3 » =P S a0 3 g GDU 18 lbo
List all states and countles for propemes overlappmg 3 ate or county oundé'mes

state , ‘ \ code county » code

state code : county 7 code

11. Form Prepared By | i

name’titie LARRY G. KIﬁCAIﬁ, Manager

organization SONOMA COMMUNITY CENTER date March 17, 1980

street ’ajlnumber 276 E. ‘Napa St. s 't;aleph‘one ; (7Q7) 938-l4626 ¢

city or town Sonoma : stat;e‘ CA 95)4.76

12. State Historic Preservation Offlcer Certification

The evaluated signiﬁcance of this property within the state is:

— = national - state - )S_ local

As the des:gnated State Historic Preservation Oﬁicer Tor the:National Histofié Preservatnon Act of 1966 (Publlc Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate.this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated .-
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Hentage Conservahon and Recreatnon Service

State Historic-Preservation Omcer sugnature - % /% %(1 S V '.‘ AV

.

title — . Lt RS IR - - ...‘ i’ Qs HARN! daten’ Q/lf/x'o .A'.‘\”J

GPO 838 83%
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The archltect of the Sonoma Grammar School was A.C. Lutgens,
& modestly successful San Franclsco bullder and designer
who had grown up iIn the Sonoma Valley and attended the old
gremmar school hls bullding eventually replaced. Among Mr.
Lutgens other bulldlngs, the most famous 1s the widely
known Sonoma City Hall, which was constructed in 1905, and
which has already gained inclusion in the National

Register.
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Sonoma Grammar School

Sonoma, Sonoma County, California
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Sonoma Grammar School
Sonoma, Sonoma Caounty California

The map below 1s a traclng of the page of

the Official Map of The City of Sonoma showing
the parcel occupled by the Sonoma Grammar School
(Sopma Community Cenmter). The entire parcel is
outlined in double black lines; the portion of
the total parcel being considered for recognition
is shaded 1in red.
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